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The Community Networks RFA – CA-05-012 – and any modifications published in the NIH Guide are the definitive and legal sources for all information about this RFA.  Review panels will work from these documents. This question and answer session is to help clarify issues in the documents to applicants. 
Question:

How are the Areas for Large, Regional, and Local defined?  

Answer:
A large-scale project (up to $1.75 million/year) has a Headquarters area and four or more additional geographic areas for a total of at least five areas.  In general, these are national in scope or cover a number of states.  A regional project (up to $1.0 million/year) has a Headquarters area and two to three other geographic areas for a total of three to four areas. The regional projects do not have to involve multiple states.  A local project (up to $500K/year) has a Headquarters area and up to one other area for a total of up to two areas. Partnerships with community-based organizations, primary/secondary prevention facilities, and community hospitals need to be established for each area.

If your needs are greater than those that can be covered by $500,000/year, then you need to justify the greater amount.  There is a large separation between the requirements for a local ($500,000) and the regional and large CNPs in terms of requirements.  The larger CNPs have the requirement that “the applicant must have a demonstrated history of achievements in work with community-based organizations in the areas of community-based participatory awareness, research, and training.”  For regional or large CNP projects there is a requirement for two proposed research projects (each 10-page in length with a term of one-year and budget of $75,000 total cost).  Thus, the requirements increase significantly for the regional and large CNP applicants.   The program goal is to increase the number of local CNP awards.  

Question:
Can you clarify “Form at Least Four Collaborations with Other NCI Programs?”

Answer:
To demonstrate the ability to “Form at least four collaborations with other NCI programs,” the applicant may describe previous experience in health disparities-related research and issues with NCI-funded activities, NIH-funded activities, or other experiences demonstrating your collaborative experience in that area.  Although applicants are welcome to contact extramural program staff at NCI for information concerning NCI-supported programs, extramural staff cannot provide either “letters-of-endorsement or letters-of-support” for grant applications.

During the course of the 5-year grant, NCI Centers/Divisions/Offices/Centers or other NCI-funded programs will initiate collaborations requesting CNP involvement in health disparity activities, such as recruitment to clinical trials or participation in energy balance activities.  The CNP will be required to form at least four of these types of collaborations during the five years of the grant.  Providing information on previous activities involving disparities gives an indication of the applicant’s ability to fulfill the collaboration objective.  

Question:
What are Qualifying Populations?

Answer:
Racial/ethnic minorities and/or underserved populations with disparities are the qualifying populations.  If possible, baseline data indicating the current level of disparities should be reported so that the reduction in disparities can be more easily measured in the future.  

Non-racial/ethnic minority communities would need to qualify as underserved populations.  It is the responsibility of the applicant to document that the proposed community is underserved and the nature of its disparities.

Question:
What are the requirements for “Proposed Research Projects?”
Answer:
The purpose of the proposed research projects is to demonstrate the ability of the applicant to perform community-based participatory research.  Each proposed research project application is comprised of a 10-page proposal for period of one year of funding with a total budget of $75,000.  There will be no additional funding for these projects.  The awardee must implement this proposed research during the course of the grant.  The mechanism for the implementation of the research is left to the awardee.  For example, the proposed research project could be performed using funding from the grant or the project can be submitted as a pilot project when the awardee transitions to Phase II.  The proposed research projects will be evaluated by the review group using the NIH review R01 criteria of significance, approach, innovation, investigator, and environment.  Applicants requesting $1,000,000 or more are required to submit two pilot projects.  The proposals are submitted as appendices to the grant application.
Question:

Can you further explain Applications to Phases I, II, and III?

Answer:

All applicants apply for Phase I grants; more experienced applicants, such as previous Special Population Network grantees and other qualified applicants, may also apply for Phase II grants.  Once the grant is awarded, the transition to Phase II and later to Phase III does not require the submission of a new PHS 398 grant application.  The transitions will be authorized by NCI program staff within the grant award of the CNP project. 

Each new application should address the investigator’s ability to perform the proposed Phase I objectives.  In addition, the applicant should fully discuss the Research Design and Methods of the proposed CNP.  Reviewers will assess the applicant’s ability to perform these tasks.   

Question:
Can you expand on the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)?  
Answer:
An MOU is requested in the RFA.  It outlines the specific roles and responsibilities of the partner and the CNP.  It is more detailed than a simple letter-of-support. The MOU may be conditional on obtaining the award.  For any partnership that the grant will provide funds to, a budget and budget justification for each partnership with the proposed amount and the purpose of the funds are required.
Question:

Could a city health department or a public health commission be viewed as a plausible lead agency?
Answer:
Eligibility organizations include state and local governments and their agencies.  The agency would need to partner with research institutions or universities for cancer research expertise and a source of junior investigators from minority and underserved populations.
Question:
Will there be a Technical Assistance Training? 
Answer:
There will be no formal technical assistance training.  If you have questions, the NCI staff can help answer them.
Question:
Can you provide a list of Frequently Asked Questions for us?

Answer:
Visit http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/RFA/QA.htm to view the Q&A’s.  Also periodically check the RFA website, http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/RFA/index.htm, for updates.
Question:
I would like to propose two sites – one focused on my local community and another on a community 60 miles away that my cancer screening program has worked with before.  Do I need two separate advisory groups and steering committees? 
Answer:
You need at least one steering committee and one community advisory group. 
Question:
Awareness – it is mentioned throughout the RFA that awareness and public education must occur and also that activities must be measurable in terms of health disparities.  As a national project or even at local
levels, measuring exposure and behavior change is very expensive.  What would be considered adequate measures that are cost effective?

Answer:
Traditionally cancer educational activities have been measured by the number of events, the people reached, the number of pamphlets distributed.  It is the applicant's choice to describe ways to evaluate these activities.  The challenge is to measure the quality of the cancer educational activities.  In addition, there will be a meeting of the awardees to develop a common set of program evaluation data elements. 
Question:
Successful implementation of SPN activities – while there are many criteria needed to judge the merit of a CNP application, among those applicants that had previous SPN funding, they will likely be held responsible in the reviewer’s eyes to justify the success and effectiveness of meeting SPN goals.  What guidelines will reviewers be given that might want to judge a previous SPN's performance?

Answer:
The CNP RFA is a reorientation of the SPN activity.  The specific success on the SPN Program is not mentioned explicitly in the review criteria, but can be seen in the aspects of the CNP RFA, experience in community-based cancer awareness, research and training.  
Question:
Pilot projects. No mention is made of the cap as it was in the concept paper. What is the budget max $50k, $75k or something different?  Can we expect different processes for submission? (i.e., # of cycles, review methods, when first are funded? etc.)

Answer:
Pilot project information will be provided to the awardees.  It is envisioned that the pilot project description in the concept paper will be used.

Question:

Has a site for Frequently Asked Questions been set up for this RFA?  Will the presentations be available?
Answer:

FAQ’s were answered at the Pre-Application Workshop on May 26at the NIH campus in Bethesda, MD.  To view the Web cast of the workshop and download presentation materials, go to http://videocast.nih.gov/PastEvents.asp?c=42.
The questions and answers are posted on: 

Community Networks Program (CNP) Website:  http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/RFA/QA.htm
Question:
Where can I get contact information for the seasoned investigators who can provide me with comments and advice?
Answer:
Here is the website for the 18 existing SPNs – http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/spn/current_network/current_initiatives.html
You may be able to contact one of them for additional information since they may be recompeting.  
Question:
Are there more detailed instructions for the proposal, such as number of pages in each section and more detail about the allowable budget?

Answer:
See this URL for page limitations: 
http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/section_1.html#page_limits
For instructions for completing 398 applications:
http://grants2.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/phs398.html
Question:
The RFA calls for three components; 1) education activities that reduce disparities by increasing community use of beneficial cancer interventions, 2) community-based participatory research, and 3) in depth training in participatory and cancer control research.   Can the requirement to provide education activities be met by education activities that increase use of cancer interventions that are part of a participatory research project meet, or is there an expectation to develop education activities that increase use of cancer interventions that are not part of a specific research project? 

Answer:
Cancer education and cancer awareness activities for increased community use of beneficial cancer interventions should occur for all 5 years of the grant. It should not be restricted to a specific study. 

Question:
The Supplementary Instructions for the Research Plan indicate that the Research Design and Methods section of the application should “describe the cancer education activities and health disparities research and training program.”  The application should also include three appendices that present plans for cancer education activities, research activities, and training activities respectively. 

-Please clarify what kind of information that should be presented in the Research Design and Methods section of the application and what kind of information should be presented in the three appendices. 

-What is the page limit for these appendices? 
Answer:
The applicant decides what information goes into each section. There are no page limits on the appendices as there are on the research section of the proposal.  The Research Plan should be wholly understandable on its own. Appendices are to provide specific and supplementary information regarding the plans. 
See http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/section_1.html#page_limits as well as http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/section_1.html#9_appendix.
Question:
Does the RFA allow for basic science research projects (i.e. molecular pathogenic mechanisms in prostate cancer among African Americans) or is it geared more toward research on preventative practices among minorities, culturally competent cancer education, etc.?

Answer:
The emphasis of this RFA is community-based participatory research and not basic science. 
Question:
Can you give a list of websites that involve the Community Networks Program RFA?
Answer:
-Community Networks Website:  http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/RFA/index.htm
 

-RFA:  http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/rfa-files/RFA-CA-05-012.html
                                                                                                                                                                            
-RFA Addendum:  http://grants.nih.gov/grants/guide/notice-files/NOT-CA-04-017.html
 

-Questions & Answers:  http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/RFA/QA.htm
 

-Pre-Application Conference Web Cast:  http://videocast.nih.gov/PastEvents.asp?c=42
 

-PHS 398 Form:  http://grants2.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/phs398.html
 

-Page Limits (398 Form):  http://grants.nih.gov/grants/funding/phs398/section_1.html#page_limits
 

-SPN Information Site:  http://crchd.nci.nih.gov/spn/index.html
 
Question:
The early detection and screening programs mentioned in the RFA primarily serve adults. Can children be included in primary prevention efforts (e.g., outreach to prevention tobacco use)?

Answer:
Yes, children can be included, if it can be demonstrated that cancer-related disparities exist. However, most avoidable cancers affect older persons.
 
Question:
Must costs for anticipated pilot projects be included in the budget in the original application?
Answer:
Costs that will be supported by separate pilot project funding do not need to be listed in the original application.

Question:
How will the NCI ensure balanced review as new institutions compete with SPN grantees?

Answer:
The review panel will assess applications based on all criteria and will assign a scientific priority to each application individually, not in comparison with other applications.  Criteria relating to experience, capabilities, and significance are not limited to previous participation in the SPN program. Decisions on awards are not made by the reviewers, but are made by the National Cancer Advisory Board and the NCI’s Executive Committee. Applicants who do not receive awards are encouraged to become involved in the CNP as partners to gain experience that will make them more competitive in the future.

The Community Networks RFA – CA-05-012 – and any modifications published in the NIH Guide are the definitive and legal sources for all information about this RFA.  Review panels will work from these documents. This question and answer session is to help clarify issues in the documents to applicants. 

